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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Good morning. My

          3  name is Leroy Comrie. I Chair the Committee on

          4  Rules, Privileges and Elections. We are here today

          5  to consider three candidates for review and

          6  approval.

          7                 The first is Ms. Susan Florence

          8  Grossman. She's a resident of Manhattan and a

          9  Mayoral Candidate for the Council's Advice and

         10  Consent for appointment for the New York City Tax

         11  Commission, succeeding Lee Mayerson for the

         12  remainder of a six-year term that will expire on

         13  January 6, 2006. Who became a judge.

         14                 Next is Paul Angelo Vallone. He is a

         15  resident of Queens and a candidate for direct

         16  appointment by the Council to the New York City

         17  Board of Correction, filling a vacant position for

         18  the remainder of an existing six-year term that will

         19  expire on October 12th, 2005. Since that is a very

         20  brief time, immediately thereafter he will begin

         21  serving a new six-year term that will commence on

         22  October 13th, 2005, the next day. And expire on

         23  October 12th, 2011.

         24                 There are two resolutions before us

         25  today.
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          2                 And last but not least we have Dr.

          3  Marcia Renee' Brown, a physicist, she is a resident

          4  of the Bronx and a candidate for the designation by

          5  the Council and subsequent appointment by the Mayor

          6  to the New York City Health and Hospitals

          7  Corporation Board of Directors, filling the vacant

          8  position for the remainder of a five-year term that

          9  will expire on March 20th, 2007.

         10                 We're going to start with Ms.

         11  Grossman.

         12                 Just so that you know, I haven't

         13  introduced the members that are here, Council Member

         14  Melinda Katz from Queens, Council Member David

         15  Weprin from Queens, Council Member Madeline

         16  Provenzano from the Bronx, and Ed O'Malley as our

         17  Legal Counsel. And I want to thank you again.

         18  Stewart Goldstein and the staff, Mr. Davis and Ms.

         19  Colton, for their excellent work in preparing the

         20  candidate background information.

         21                 The Tax Commission, as you should

         22  know, is responsible for reviewing and correcting

         23  all assessments of real property within the City.

         24                 The Commissioner has a president and

         25  six commissioners, all of whom with at least three
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          2  years experience in the real estate field.

          3                 The president receives an annual

          4  salary of $152,500, and the commissioners are

          5  compensated with an annual salary stipend of

          6  $23,003.

          7                 Ms. Grossman, do you have an opening

          8  statement?

          9                 If you could first raise your right

         10  hand and be sworn in, and then let us hear your

         11  opening statement, please?

         12                 MR. O'MALLEY: Do you solemnly swear

         13  the testimony you're about to give the Committee is

         14  the truth and the whole truth?

         15                 MS. GROSSMAN: I do.

         16                 MR. O'MALLEY: Please state your name

         17  for the record.

         18                 MS. GROSSMAN: Susan Grossman.

         19                 MR. O'MALLEY: Thank you.

         20                 The witness is sworn.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON RUIZ: Okay, do you have

         22  an opening statement, Ms. Grossman?

         23                 MS. GROSSMAN: I'd like to thank the

         24  Committee for the opportunity to appear before you.

         25                 I am a New Yorker, born, bred and
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          2  schooled here, as you can see from my resume. And if

          3  confirmed, I would be most happy to serve the City

          4  of New York again in this capacity.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Mr. Newman, do

          6  you have a statement?

          7                 MR. NEWMAN: I just wanted to

          8  introduce myself, and if any members have a question

          9  that's appropriate for me as the president of the

         10  Tax Commission to respond to, I would be glad to

         11  respond.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I want to thank

         13  you for coming to support your candidate.

         14                 And we also have another supporter of

         15  the candidate in the back, the Deputy Chancellor for

         16  the Department of Education School Facilities.

         17                 Did you want to make a statement on

         18  behalf of Ms. Grossman, Ms. Grimm? Since you took

         19  the time to come down, come across?

         20                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Thank you

         21  very much. I'm delighted to be here to show support

         22  for the candidacy of Susan Grossman.

         23                 For nine and a half years I worked

         24  very closely with the Tax Commission in my role with

         25  the Finance Department, and I know it's operations.
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          2                 I have had the honor of working with

          3  Susan Grossman in several different roles, including

          4  her role as Counsel to the Department of Finance.

          5                 I think you find here a tremendously

          6  qualified candidate, who will be a great asset to

          7  both the Commission and the City of New York.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you for

         10  coming down today.

         11                 Mr. Finance Chair, do you have an

         12  opening statement, since she's on the Tax

         13  Commission?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: No. I've read

         15  Ms. Grossman's resume, and know of her reputation as

         16  Counsel to the Finance Agency, Department of

         17  Finance, and I highly recommend her for appointment.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: We have been

         19  joined by Council Member Maria Baez from the Bronx.

         20                 No other members are indicating that

         21  they have questions.

         22                 Ms. Grossman, you come highly

         23  recommended.

         24                 MS. GROSSMAN: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: So, I am going to
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          2  try to behave myself and not ask too many questions,

          3  but the ability to do assessments and to do hearings

          4  is a critical issue for many members of the City.

          5                 As you know, we have a large senior

          6  community, people that are having more difficulty to

          7  pay their taxes on their homes because when they

          8  bought them 30 years ago, the value has increased

          9  sometimes ten-fold. As a member of the Tax

         10  Commission, can you think of any methodology that

         11  could help people that are on fixed incomes so they

         12  can afford their own properties?

         13                 MS. GROSSMAN: I think that is a

         14  critical issue. I live in a building where there are

         15  many elderly people and I know their concerns.

         16                 I think that having a fair process is

         17  probably the most important for the senior citizens,

         18  a process that they can understand and participate

         19  in.

         20                 As far as policies, that certainly is

         21  something for the City to consider and act on. At

         22  Tax Commission, our job is to provide that fair

         23  forum for any taxpayer, and for seniors it certainly

         24  is critical.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I'm sorry for the
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          2  distraction. I don't know what they're doing back

          3  there but it's pretty noisy.

          4                 Okay, I reviewed your questions and

          5  your answers were pretty extensive. There was one I

          6  wanted to ask you a question about.

          7                 What do you envision is the greatest

          8  challenge facing the Commission in the next coming

          9  year? Or the next four years?

         10                 MS. GROSSMAN: I think it is most

         11  important that the public sees the Commission as

         12  providing that fair and independent process.

         13                 I think the City has been tainted by

         14  the scandals, and that the protest procedure itself

         15  is often so mysterious to taxpayers that they don't

         16  even know that there is a protest procedure, or how

         17  they can access it.

         18                 So, I think public outreach to inform

         19  taxpayers, particularly homeowners and senior

         20  citizens in areas where they do not have expertise

         21  is critical.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.

         23                 Just as a point of clarification, I

         24  have been working with the head of the Commissioner,

         25  Martha Stark, for Finance -- I'm having a name day,
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          2  bad name day today, I can't remember anybody's name

          3  -- but Commissioner Stark has been doing some

          4  excellent work. We're trying to do some more

          5  community outreach and I've been helpful, because

          6  clearly, informing people of what their options are,

          7  so that they have a right of appeal, where seniors

          8  can find out about the benefits that they might be

          9  eligible for, but they just don't think about, I'm

         10  trying to get the Department of Finance to make

         11  their letters more user-friendly. It is something

         12  that I know the Commissioner has been working on,

         13  and it's still a leap to make sure that when

         14  somebody gets a letter or a formal letter from the

         15  City, that they actually open it and read it, they

         16  can be able to interpret it.

         17                 And, you know, clearly the Finance

         18  Department, the language has to be technical, but it

         19  could be made, you know, some opportunities in it

         20  for more clarity so people can understand what's

         21  available to them.

         22                 She has done a ten-fold leap in

         23  outreach and community service, and hopefully from

         24  your background, we looked at people that

         25  recommended you, you can continue to help her to do
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          2  that.

          3                 Seeing that there are no other

          4  questions, I want to thank you for coming. We will

          5  be voting in a few minutes, as soon as we get a

          6  quorum.

          7                 Now we'll move on to Mr. Paul Angelo

          8  Vallone, and he is going to be a candidate for

          9  direct appointment to the Board of Correction.

         10                 The New York City Department of

         11  Correction provides for the care, custody and

         12  control of persons accused or convicted of crimes,

         13  and sentenced to one year or less of jail time.

         14                 The Department manages 15 inmates, at

         15  least ten of which are on Rikers Island and handles

         16  approximately 110,000 admissions each year, and

         17  manages an average daily inmate population of

         18  approximately 14,000 individuals.

         19                 The New York City Board of Correction

         20  oversees the Department's operations and evaluates

         21  agency performance. By law, the Board or its members

         22  shall have the power and duty to inspect and visit

         23  all institutions and facilities under the

         24  jurisdiction of the Department at any time, evaluate

         25  the Department performance, establish minimum
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          2  standards for the care, custody, correction and

          3  treatment of all persons held or confined under the

          4  jurisdiction of the Department, and to establish

          5  procedures for the hearing of grievances and

          6  complaints.

          7                 The Board is composed of nine

          8  members, three members are appointed by the Mayor,

          9  three by the Council, and three by the Mayor on the

         10  nomination jointly by the presiding justices of the

         11  Appellate Division of the Supreme Court for the

         12  first and second judicial departments.

         13                 Members are appointed to terms of six

         14  years and vacancies are filled for the remainder of

         15  an unexpired term.

         16                 The Mayor designates the Chair of the

         17  Board from among its members.

         18                 Although the Board members receive no

         19  compensation, they may however be reimbursed for

         20  expenses incurred in the performance of their

         21  duties.

         22                 Mr. Vallone, can you raise your right

         23  hand to be sworn in, please?

         24                 MR. VALLONE: Yes.

         25                 MR. O'MALLEY: Do you solemnly swear
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          2  or affirm the testimony you're about to give the

          3  Committee is the truth and the whole truth?

          4                 MR. VALLONE: I do.

          5                 MR. O'MALLEY: Please state your name

          6  for the record.

          7                 MR. VALLONE: Paul Angelo Vallone.

          8                 MR. O'MALLEY: Thank you very much,

          9  the witness is sworn.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you. Do you

         11  have an opening statement, Mr. Vallone?

         12                 MR. VALLONE: Yes, Mr. Chairman. I

         13  would just like to say thank you to the Committee,

         14  the full Council and Speaker Miller for giving me

         15  this opportunity to submit my application to become

         16  a member of the Board of Corrections.

         17                 I come from a family that has had a

         18  long service of public service and dedication to the

         19  community.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: What was that

         21  last name again? I didn't get it.

         22                 MR. VALLONE: Vallone. But this is my

         23  first, and I'm very excited and very honored to have

         24  this opportunity.  And continuing to run the family

         25  law firm as a general partner in Astoria for over
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          2  ten years, I think the experience there in the

          3  community, and especially Astoria, will be very

          4  helpful. And Astoria houses the largest detention

          5  facility in the entire country, if not the world, in

          6  Rikers Island, and of all the community affiliations

          7  and associations I belong with, each one of them are

          8  concerned with direct issues that will probably come

          9  before the Board of Corrections. With the amount of

         10  population they have on a daily basis, it's a

         11  primary focus for me. And as a result, I've been

         12  involved with that in the community, and have spent

         13  my life there in Astoria and have a residence now in

         14  Flushing.

         15                 I would just like to say thank you

         16  for this opportunity.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

         18                 Any questions?

         19                 Yes, Council Member Katz.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Mr. Vallone is

         21  on the Community Board also, right?

         22                 MR. VALLONE: That is correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: You've been on

         24  there for a few years?

         25                 MR. VALLONE: Since 2002. And I took
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          2  the step to petition the Mayor's Office to get a

          3  waiver to remain on Community Board 1 and that was

          4  granted by Mr. Crow.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I just wanted to

          6  make sure we weren't losing him in the community as

          7  well.

          8                 Mr. Vallone has been around for a

          9  long time, not only with his family, but also

         10  himself, in the court system of Queens and in the

         11  community in Astoria, and also just to place on the

         12  record, as I like doing, Mr. Chair, as you know,

         13  also a graduate of my alma mater which is St. John's

         14  School of Law.

         15                 So, a warm place in my heart on that

         16  level. So, we welcome him to City government as

         17  well.

         18                 Thanks.

         19                 MR. VALLONE: Thank you very much,

         20  Councilwoman.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

         22  Weprin.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Yes, I'll

         24  disclose that I know Paul Angelo, although I didn't

         25  know his middle name was Angelo, but Paul Vallone
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          2  for many years. And he's been a very active member

          3  of the Queens Community.

          4                 As Council Member Katz mentioned,

          5  both in the civic community and legal community, he

          6  has an outstanding reputation, and I highly support

          7  his nomination to be a member of the Board of

          8  Corrections.

          9                 I think he'll be an outstanding

         10  member, and bring a depth of legal, as well as

         11  community knowledge to that position.

         12                 MR. VALLONE: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I'd just like to

         14  say that personally I'm impressed that you want to

         15  continue the tradition of your family in public

         16  service. You have done that and they've been doing

         17  that in many community organizations. It's

         18  impressive when an entire family desires to be part

         19  of the fabric of this City. To serve on the

         20  Corrections Board, which is a non-compensated

         21  position, is also very admirable, because you're

         22  going to be in a lot of meetings, but then also

         23  trying to help people change their lives, hopefully.

         24                 So, I would implore you to always

         25  keep that spirit and that people have hopefully get
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          2  a chance to rehabilitations and really give them an

          3  opportunity to move in a different direction by your

          4  rulings and how you treat the people there.

          5                 So, clearly it's a position that

          6  requires someone with compassion and someone with

          7  understanding and the tradition of your family is to

          8  provide that for people. So, I'm glad to see that

          9  you're continuing the family traditions.

         10                 MR. VALLONE: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: With that, you

         12  also serve on the community board, there's a waiver

         13  that you're supposed to get, a technical matter, and

         14  I'm sure that you'll have that forthcoming.

         15                 MR. VALLONE: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I believe I

         17  forgot to mention that Ms. Grossman has to get the

         18  same waiver. But I'm sure that you'll provide that

         19  because you've been able to be quite forthcoming on

         20  everything that have been asked of you so far, and

         21  Ms. Grossman for that matter as well.

         22                 We're going to move on, seeing that

         23  there are no other questions, to the last and the

         24  youngest person that's being appointed today, Dr.

         25  Marcia Renee' Brown, to the Health and Hospitals
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          2  Corporation.

          3                 Health and Hospitals Corporation

          4  Board of Directors is a public benefit corporation

          5  charged with the duty of providing high quality,

          6  dignified and comprehensive health care and

          7  treatment to the public, especially to those who

          8  cannot afford such services.

          9                 HHC's Board of Directors consists of

         10  16 members who administer HHC, included within the

         11  Board's membership, in addition to five ex-officio

         12  members, ten appointees of the Mayor, five of whom

         13  are designated by the Council for consideration by

         14  the Mayor.

         15                 The term of office for directors is

         16  five years, with the vacancy filled under the terms

         17  of original appointment.

         18                 Directors are not compensated by or

         19  reimbursed for actual expenses.

         20                 Can you raise your right hand to be

         21  sworn in, please?

         22                 MR. O'MALLEY: So you solemnly swear

         23  and affirm the testimony you're about to give to the

         24  Committee is the truth and the whole truth?

         25                 DR. BROWN: Yes.
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          2                 MR. O'MALLEY: Please state your name

          3  for the record.

          4                 DR. BROWN: Marcia Renee' Brown.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: You have to

          6  actually turn the light, the light has to be darker

          7  for it to work.

          8                 DR. BROWN: Dr. Marcia Renee' Brown.

          9                 MR. O'MALLEY: The witness is sworn.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Do you have an

         11  opening statement for the Committee, Dr. Brown?

         12                 DR. BROWN: Yes, I do.

         13                 First, giving honor to God, the City

         14  Council, and all the distinguished guests, I am

         15  privileged and honored to be here today, and I have

         16  dedicated my life to community service, especially

         17  when it has to do with health care, and I am proud

         18  to be able to be a board member on HHC since North

         19  Central Bronx and Jacobi Hospital was where a place

         20  I trained when I was in medical school, as well as

         21  my residency program. Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Councilman

         23  Provenzano has a statement.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I'd like

         25  to welcome Dr. Brown here today. The Bronx has not
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          2  had a representative on the HHC Board for 12 years.

          3  We've been criticized for it, justly so, and over

          4  the last three years when I was head of the Bronx

          5  Delegation, I worked, the Bronx Delegation did work

          6  to get a candidate, and now Maria Baez is head of

          7  the Bronx Delegation, and I think that we have found

          8  a worthy candidate.

          9                 As you can see going through her life

         10  history here, she has been very active in the

         11  community. She, aside from her position in health

         12  care, she has been a fantastic female role model.

         13  She is the president of the New York Women's Chamber

         14  of Commerce.

         15                 There are two matters and I think

         16  they have been resolved. She presently serves on the

         17  NCB Community Advisory Board, and you will have to

         18  resign from that, as you know?

         19                 DR. BROWN: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: And she

         21  also serves on Community 5, the Community Board, and

         22  you have a choice, you can get a waiver or you can

         23  resign. And I know that's been discussed with you.

         24                 DR. BROWN: Most likely I will resign

         25  from Community Board 5.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay. So,

          3  their loss, Community Board's loss, and NCB's loss

          4  will be our gain hopefully.

          5                 The other thing that we have to do at

          6  this point is Dr. Brown has to be approved by the

          7  Mayor, so hopefully that will happen quickly so that

          8  the Bronx, and I know Maria shares my thoughts on

          9  this, will finally have a representative on HHC.

         10                 Thank you, Dr. Brown.

         11                 DR. BROWN: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Any other

         13  questions for Dr. Brown?

         14                 Okay, well, everybody is in a good

         15  mood today.

         16                 Well, Dr. Brown, I want to

         17  congratulate you for your desire to be on HHC Board

         18  and to go to the investigations and actually all

         19  three candidates, because one of the reasons why

         20  they haven't had a representative is because a lot

         21  of people don't want to have an open life, or have

         22  their background investigated, and I have to commend

         23  all the candidates that come before us, because they

         24  have a commitment to the City and a commitment to

         25  want to serve. Your recommendations and your history
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          2  is stellar, and we look forward to you being an

          3  active member of the HHC Board.

          4                 Now, we're trying to get a quorum so

          5  we can go ahead and vote. That's why I'm stalling

          6  and filibustering a little bit because I don't know

          7  where anybody is today.

          8                 There was one certificate of

          9  occupancy matter for vacant property that you have

         10  that's actually being used, in a non- -- that's

         11  actually being used for your own purpose and it's

         12  non -- it's not a problem but it's just a technical

         13  matter that has to be resolved?

         14                 DR. BROWN: Yes, I am aware of that

         15  and I am in the process of making appointments with

         16  whoever I need to to get that taken care of.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I'll help

         20  you. I'll make another comment.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I would

         23  like to let folks know that Dr. Brown is accompanied

         24  by her pastor today, so I'm sure he wouldn't be here

         25  unless he was going to say nice things about her,
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          2  so...

          3                 DR. BROWN: Would you like to say

          4  something?

          5                 REVEREND JOSEPH: Well, I'm grateful

          6  to God for the opportunity granted to Dr. Brown.

          7  What the Lord has invested in her is seen by

          8  everybody. She's the best choice, I think, and we

          9  thank you for giving her the opportunity. Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: State your name

         11  for the record, please. I'm sorry, Pastor.

         12                 REVEREND JOSEPH: My name is Reverend

         13  Joseph.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Reverend Joseph?

         15  And your church is?

         16                 REVEREND JOSEPH: It's in the Bronx.

         17  Roy House Chapel.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Roy House Chapel.

         19  And where is it located?

         20                 I'm stalling for time here. Help me

         21  out.

         22                 REVEREND JOSEPH: Yeah, 153rd Grand

         23  Concourse.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay. All right,

         25  thank you.
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          2                 REVEREND JOSEPH: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay, we need two

          4  more members to go ahead and vote. Dr. Brown, did

          5  you want to say something?

          6                 DR. BROWN: I also would like to

          7  acknowledge the other members of my party in the

          8  back.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Sure.

         10                 DR. BROWN: If you want to stall for

         11  more time.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: All right.

         13                 DR. BROWN: If you'll stand up and

         14  introduce yourselves.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: If you can come

         16  to the mic, the nearest mic, because if we're going

         17  to put it into the record, they need to be able to

         18  hear it.

         19                 MS. TARLOW: Good morning. My name is

         20  Edmesa Tarlow, and I am the Chair for North Central

         21  Bronx Hospital for the past 20 years, and I'm

         22  delighted to have my colleague Marcia Brown leaving.

         23  I will miss you a lot. She's very, very good at what

         24  she's doing, and I hope her the best.

         25                 DR. BROWN: Thank you.
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          2                 DR. MONTASHOR: Good morning. My name

          3  is Dr. Barlow Montashor (phonetic). I've walked with

          4  Dr. Brown for the last couple of years. I'm also on

          5  North Central Bronx Hospital, and also I'm on

          6  Community Board 5, where she also be the

          7  Chairperson. I'm the Health Chairperson for

          8  Community Board 5. I strongly believe you have a

          9  very high worthy candidate before you today, and

         10  thank you for giving her the opportunity. Thank you.

         11                 MR. SEGANT: Good morning. My name is

         12  Mike Segant (phonetic). I just happen to be a good

         13  friend of Dr. Brown. I've known her for, I've only

         14  known her for a short time, a couple of years. But

         15  she is truly a deserving candidate. And she has done

         16  a lot for me personally as a friend, and I know that

         17  she, the contributions that she's made to the

         18  community, and definitely not only the best choice,

         19  the right choice. Thank you.

         20                 MR. CARTER: Good morning, everyone.

         21  I'm Jim Carter. I'm a personal friend of Dr. Brown,

         22  and I'm also President of the Devor Organization.

         23  We're a presentation training organization.

         24                 I've been an associate of Marcia's

         25  for the past 12 years, and I've seen her evolve from
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          2  a college graduate to a medical student, to just a

          3  pillar of strength in the community. And she has a

          4  great understanding of what it takes for a young

          5  woman to apply and commit herself to what's

          6  necessary, to be a leader and a role model for all

          7  women and all people. So, I want to congratulate her

          8  and thank the Council for their consideration of Dr.

          9  Brown. Thank you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you. We

         11  have a quorum now. We've been joined by Council

         12  Member Bill Perkins from Manhattan and Council

         13  Member Yvette Clarke from Brooklyn.

         14                 Council Member Perkins has a question

         15  for Dr. Brown.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

         17  very much. First of all, I want to commend both of

         18  the candidates, if you will, for their outstanding

         19  accomplishments.

         20                 Dr. Brown, I want to -- I'm concerned

         21  about a few things as it relates to the Health and

         22  Hospitals Corporation.

         23                 I know right now the head of the

         24  Corporation, Dr. Chu, is gone, and I'm just

         25  wondering about the stability of the institution, of
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          2  the corporation, and what you might know or what you

          3  might think appropriate in terms of his replacement,

          4  number one.

          5                 And number two, I have some issues,

          6  health issues that I've been working on related to

          7  infant and maternal mortality, lead paint poisoning,

          8  and then, you know, something a little bit, you

          9  know, some folks don't pay as much attention to it,

         10  but the whole question of rat infestation in our

         11  City, and I know that some of our hospitals, in

         12  particular Harlem Hospital, complained to me about

         13  that infestation more or less in the vicinity of

         14  that hospital, which I dare say impacts the

         15  hospitals as well and rat bites and all that's

         16  related. So, it's some of the concerns I'd like you

         17  to sort of touch base on?

         18                 DR. BROWN: Sure. I'm going to answer

         19  your second question first.

         20                 I think that there is a real problem

         21  with mothers and the infant mortality that should be

         22  a focus that the hospital should make a priority,

         23  and the women and the newborns should have priority

         24  care, as regardless of their ability to pay.

         25                 That's something that a program
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          2  should be made for them.

          3                 The second part about the rat

          4  infestation, I remember, and I live in the Bronx

          5  close to Ms. Baez, they used to jump out of the

          6  garbage can, they used to run across the street, the

          7  cats won't even bother them. So, apparently it's

          8  still a problem and we will have to come up with a

          9  program in which the garbage is secured, the streets

         10  are clean, because a lot of times even on my block,

         11  you have a boulevard in which there are a lot of

         12  fast food stores, but because of the wind,

         13  everything comes down the block. You have food, you

         14  have paper, you have everything that's going to

         15  cause wild rats to come down. So, someone should

         16  make an effort that there is someone out there

         17  cleaning up all day. Because on my property, we get

         18  tickets all the time, and it's not our garbage. So,

         19  that's one big problem that I see and should be

         20  addressed, in terms of what the Sanitation people

         21  can do.

         22                 Your first question, in terms of the

         23  stability of the hospital, I believe there could be

         24  a great replacement. I was looking forward to

         25  working under Dr. Chu, because I thought he was so
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          2  sincere, and he was somebody who I wanted to learn

          3  from. The only thing I can say right now is, I'm

          4  available.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Very good.

          6  I'm glad to hear that. You're ready to serve. I feel

          7  the same way.

          8                 But I don't expect the Health and

          9  Hospitals Corporation to be able to solve the

         10  problem of rodent infestation in our communities.

         11  But I would hope that it becomes a concern that you

         12  have and at some point, you know, just keep that in

         13  mind.

         14                 Right now it's obviously under the

         15  jurisdiction of the Health Department. I think it

         16  should be an issue that's isolated to a separate

         17  agency so that it can be focused on. But at some

         18  point it always winds up having to be addressed by

         19  our public hospitals, either because of rodent

         20  bites, or because of the asthma that rodent feces

         21  contributes to or something more or less like it.

         22                 So, thank you very much for your

         23  response to the questions I have.

         24                 DR. BROWN: You're welcome.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Mr. Vallone,
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          2  you know, the Board of Corrections, they sort of

          3  oversee more or less the Department of Corrections.

          4                 MR. VALLONE: Correct.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: One of the

          6  great challenges that I've noticed at the Department

          7  of Corrections is, is what I'm told, and you can

          8  correct me if I'm wrong, is somewhat of a resurgence

          9  of somewhat of violence that's being taken.

         10                 Have you heard anything in that vain?

         11  Are you familiar with anything in terms of the

         12  violence, you know, inmate to inmate kind of

         13  activity in Rikers Island? Are you familiar at all

         14  with this?

         15                 MR. VALLONE: Well, I've come to

         16  understand in going through the process, one of the

         17  things this year the Board of Corrections will be

         18  focusing on is reevaluating the previously

         19  established minimum standards, and the minimum

         20  standards that are in place, charter-mandated, will

         21  be evaluated by the Board and with the assistance of

         22  the Department of Corrections. And that's one of the

         23  primary focuses that this year they'll be looking at

         24  is how best to handle the inmate population that's

         25  almost 15,000 a day, just through Rikers Island,
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          2  which is an amazing number. So, I look forward to

          3  working with that.

          4                 And violence in its nature needs to

          5  be addressed anywhere, especially with the

          6  Corrections Department and the Board of Corrections,

          7  so in handling that checks and balances between the

          8  two, I look forward to addressing those issues.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Two other

         10  concerns I have I just want to put out there. Number

         11  one, you know, AIDS is in the prisons.

         12                 MR. VALLONE: It's everywhere, yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And the

         14  question is, how do we address AIDS in the prisons,

         15  and maybe you have some thoughts about that?

         16                 And then, of course, you know, your

         17  whole question of rehabilitation, you know, there

         18  used to be a notion that the prisons had a

         19  responsibility to help towards some sort of

         20  rehabilitation. It seems that more and more that

         21  notion is being discarded and replaced by just the

         22  notion of care, custody and control and punishment

         23  perhaps, but not any sense of whether or not the

         24  mission should include rehabilitation.

         25                 So, if you can just give me some of
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          2  your thoughts about those two things, otherwise I'm

          3  very happy to be supportive.

          4                 MR. VALLONE: I'm very concerned, and

          5  I agree with you. Considering when you look at a

          6  larger question as who you think you are and what

          7  type of purpose you can serve in life, spirituality

          8  is very important. We're all on this planet

          9  together. And when someone has made that decision

         10  and has now become part of the Department of

         11  Correction, or a detainee, or has been accused of a

         12  crime and awaiting sentencing, as most are in Rikers

         13  Island, I think one of our primary focuses is to

         14  provide some type of rehabilitation to the best of

         15  our ability. Because when these people, any of us,

         16  you know, are reintroduced back into the world, it

         17  helps all of us if they are not brought back in. So,

         18  a clear plan to help them get back onto a path is

         19  going to help all of us, all of our lives, so that

         20  we're not again victims, we don't all have to become

         21  any type of more of a burden to us in society as to

         22  help all of us.

         23                 And I think just because someone has

         24  now made a mistake, depending on the path that's

         25  chosen, I think we should do everything we can to
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          2  help them.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Just for

          5  information, Ms. Grossman is still here, for the

          6  members that just came.

          7                 Council Member Quinn we've been

          8  joined by. We are looking at Dr. Marcia Brown and

          9  Paul Vallone. Dr. Brown is going to HHC, Paul

         10  Vallone is going to the Department of Corrections,

         11  and Susan Florence Grossman is going to the New York

         12  City Tax Commission. And Council Member Clarke has a

         13  question.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Good morning.

         15  My question is directed to Mr. Paul Vallone.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I'm sorry, the

         17  Finance Committee needs to start so Councilman

         18  Weprin would like to vote so he can leave.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: I'd like to

         20  vote aye on all three appointments.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Mr. Chairman,

         23  I'm a part of that Committee, I would like to vote.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay, why don't

         25  we just vote right across the board, and put that in
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          2  the bank, if you members don't object, all right?

          3                 Can you call the roll, please?

          4                 MR. O'MALLEY: Comrie.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Aye on all.

          6                 MR. O'MALLEY: Perkins.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Aye on all.

          8                 MR. O'MALLEY: Provenzano.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Aye on

         10  all.

         11                 MR. O'MALLEY: Quinn.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Aye on all.

         13                 MR. O'MALLEY: Baez.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Aye on all.

         15                 MR. O'MALLEY: Clarke.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Aye on all.

         17                 MR. O'MALLEY: Katz.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Aye on all.

         19                 MR. O'MALLEY: By a vote of eight in

         20  the affirmative, none in the negative, all three

         21  matters are adopted, and there will be reports for

         22  you to sign later.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

         24  Clarke, I'm sorry.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.
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          2  Chair. My questions and comments are really directed

          3  to Mr. Paul Vallone.

          4                 I chair the Committee on Fire and

          5  Criminal Justice Services, and I want to thank you

          6  for wanting to serve on the Board of Corrections.

          7                 In line of some of the questioning my

          8  colleague Bill Perkins put before you, there

          9  actually happens to be a program in place now

         10  instituted in partnership with the Administration,

         11  which is a discharge planning program that brings to

         12  bear a number of the community-based organizations

         13  that address drug treatment, housing, job

         14  development, and it's a voluntary program that are

         15  given to detainees on Rikers Island and throughout

         16  the other facilities so that we can begin to address

         17  the issues of recidivism, and also the reentry of

         18  folks who have been incarcerated back into our

         19  communities, and I would encourage you to take a

         20  look at that because it's really in its pilot phase

         21  and it would be good to have an objective

         22  examination of that coming from the Board of

         23  Correction.

         24                 Secondly, a number of issues have

         25  come to my office with respect to the treatment of
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          2  the physically disabled and mentally ill that are

          3  incarcerated. And that has been the subject of

          4  litigation from time in memoriam, but there seems to

          5  be some challenge with respect to the Department of

          6  Correction, and really creating an environment to

          7  address that challenge.

          8                 I'm asking if you've heard anything

          9  with respect to that particular population within

         10  the populations that are being detained or that are

         11  incarcerated, and do you have any thoughts on the

         12  role that the Board of Correction can play in really

         13  getting the Administration to focus on the specific

         14  needs of that population?

         15                 MR. VALLONE: Yes, I do. And thank

         16  you. I look forward to working directly with you as

         17  a City Council appointment. I know you're chair of

         18  the committee for that.

         19                 I think those are two very important

         20  concerns, because in speaking with current members

         21  and trying to get myself up to speed, I agree with

         22  what you just outlined as two major areas. First and

         23  foremost with the reentry and the rehabilitation, I

         24  think that's a wonderful pilot program and I will do

         25  everything I can to report back to you on that, as
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          2  soon as I am able to review that.

          3                 I think there are private entities

          4  out there that do forcefully look for people to give

          5  them a second chance. I think that's something else

          6  that can be explored for possible employment. How

          7  they are re-entered back into society, not just

          8  dropped off somewhere. How best we can minimize that

          9  impact.

         10                 And secondly, with the mental health

         11  and the health concerns, they're part of the minimum

         12  standards and they're part of the Charter-mandated

         13  protection the Board has to oversee and help that, I

         14  think one of the concerns that's come up is, the

         15  Department of Corrections has to make within 24 to

         16  48 hours a doctor evaluation of all inmates that

         17  come in for the first time. There doesn't seem to be

         18  enough of the medical facilities to do that

         19  properly. Because once they are introduced into that

         20  population, they're not properly diagnosed, it's a

         21  mental condition or a physical condition or both,

         22  they need to then be placed in the proper facility,

         23  and that's a very critical, within the first, I mean

         24  it's such an overwhelming change of lifestyle, that

         25  within the 24 to 48 hours, I think that would be an
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          2  area that could help that, if there's a greater

          3  medical overview and not just a glance and filling

          4  out paperwork and fill medication. I would be

          5  supportive of that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Speaker Miller is

          7  here. He would like to vote.

          8                 SPEAKER MILLER: Is there anyone here

          9  to allow me to vote? Shall I just say aye? Is that

         10  what you want me to say, Mr. Chairman?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: How would you

         12  like to vote?

         13                 SPEAKER MILLER: Aye.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you very

         15  much.

         16                 SPEAKER MILLER: Thank you, Mr.

         17  Chairman.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Sorry to

         19  interrupt.

         20                 MR. VALLONE: I would just like to

         21  finish by thanking my wonderful and beautiful wife

         22  for coming and supporting me today and my

         23  father-in-law who made the trek. It's a very proud

         24  moment for our family.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: And we'd like to
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          2  thank them for putting up with you.

          3                 MR. VALLONE: I second that.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: All right. Well,

          5  seeing as there are no other questions, Councilman

          6  Fidler is close to the room and we'll keep the roll

          7  open.

          8                 I want to again thank all three

          9  candidates, Ms. Grossman, Paul Vallone and Dr.

         10  Brown, for deciding to serve the City in the various

         11  capacities that they're moving to, and I hope that

         12  you keep a clear line of communication with the

         13  Council so that we can help be your advocate. If you

         14  find that there is something that is troubling you

         15  that you think we could help, you know, whether

         16  you're a mayoral appointment or our City Council

         17  appointment, we are trying to do our role to try to

         18  advocate on behalf of New Yorkers. And hearing from

         19  Councilman Perkins and Councilman Clarke and the

         20  other concerns that we have in the Council, I hope

         21  that you monitor the Council meetings that affect

         22  your different agencies so that you can be aware of

         23  what our views are on different matters, and

         24  hopefully report back to us on anything that you

         25  think can be helpful to us to help you.
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          2                 With that, we have Councilman Lew

          3  Fidler here.

          4                 Good morning, sir.

          5                 We have for your consideration and

          6  vote, Ms. Susan Florence Grossman for New York City

          7  Tax Commission; Mr. Paul Angelo Vallone, to the New

          8  York City Board of Correction; and Dr. Marcia Renee'

          9  Brown to the New York City Health and Hospitals Corp

         10  Board of Directors.

         11                 MR. O'MALLEY: Fidler.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Aye on all.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: With that, the

         14  meeting is over. Thank you for coming down. We'll

         15  hold the record open for those two members that have

         16  to come and vote. And with that I declare the

         17  meeting of the Committee closed. Have a good day.

         18                 The reports will be ready to sign by

         19  the Caucus Meeting.

         20                 (Hearing concluded at 11:30 a.m.)
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